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CAPTI ON

PROCEEDI NGS in the above-styled and nunbered cause
on the 23rd day of Cctober, 2017, before Faith Gigshy,
Arkansas Suprene Court Certified Court Reporter #686, at
10: 00 a.m, in the Hearing Room of the Arkansas
I nsurance Departnent, 1200 West Third Street, Little
Rock, Arkansas, pursuant to the agreement hereinafter
set forth.
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PROCEEDI NGS
OCTCBER 23, 2017

HEARI NG OFFI CER Wl |, good morning. It
s 10:00 on Cctober 23, 2017, and we are here
in the mtter of the Proposed Anended Rule 27
M ni mum St andards for Medicare Suppl enent
Policies. M nanme is Russ Galbraith and
Conmi ssi oner Kerr has designated me as the
hearing officer in this matter. Representing
the Departnent is Booth Rand.

Booth, you can get it started

MR RAND: Thank you, M. Hearing Officer.

|'ve got quite a few documents that we woul d
like to submit into the admnistrative record,
nmost all of which are, as you are aware,
required by the APA and the Bureau of

Legi sl ative Research and the Arkansas statutes.

The first exhibit is your Designation of
Hearing O ficer signed by the Conmm ssioner
Exhi bit Number 2 is the copy of the Proposed
Rule 27. 1t's not been signed yet. Exhibit
Nunber 3 is a copy of the markup of proposed
Rule 27. The markup shows the changes to AID
Rul e 27 that we propose to have the Department
adopt today.

Grigsby Reporting Services

Page 4





O© 00 N O O b W DN -

N NN R R R R R R R PR,
OB WNEF O OOWLWNOOUO MAWRNRO

Page 5

Exhibit 4 is a copy of Act 684 of the
Arkansas State Legislature, formerly Senate
Bill 642 sponsored by Senator Rapert, which is
one of the reasons why we're here today. The
act requires the Insurance Departnent to nodify
its current Rule 27 to allow for the sale of
Medi gap policies to individuals under 65 with a
disability.

Exhi bit Number 5 is a copy of the Notice of
Public Hearing that went out, that was issued.
Exhibit 6 is a sunmary that | wote for the BLR
describing the proposed changes. Exhibit 7 is
a copy of the electronic mail distribution
bl ast, which included the NOPH, which links the
NOPH to a rule for the industry review for
coments.

Exhibit 8 is a cover letter that we sent to
the Arkansas Denocrat Gazette advising them
that we wish to run newspaper notice describing
the date and time for the proposed rul e changes
and to describe to the public when and where we
were going to neet to discuss these rule
changes for today, Cctober 23rd at 10:00 a. m
| believe the newspaper notice ran for three
days, as it's required to, on 9/18, 9/19, 9/20.
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That's in Exhibit 9.

Exhibit 10 is a cover letter to Donna Davis
at Arkansas Legislative Council that enclosed a
copy of the proposed rule. Exhibits 11 and 12
are filings that we make with the cover letter
and proposed rule to Arkansas Legislative
Council. The rest of the items, 13 through 16
are letters that we send as a matter of
courtesy to various officials describing our
proposed rul e changes.

Exhibit 17 is an open area where we receive
public comrents. 1've only gotten one public
conment today and it's from Fresenius Medica
Care Goup that | would like to admt into the
record. It nmakes a comment. So | wll talk
about their letter ina mnute. But | would
make that as part of Exhibit Nunber 17. And |
nove to admt those items into the
adm nistrative record

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So, without objection,
Department's Exhibits 1 through 17 will be
added to the record, and you can continue.

(WHEREUPON, Exhi bits Number 1 through 17
were marked for identification and are attached
hereto.)
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MR RAND: The Arkansas Insurance
Department Rule 27 that we're review ng today
is a pre-existing Arkansas Insurance Depart nent
rule. This is not a newrule. W are making
amendnents to it. It's, | don't know, 25/30
years old. W have made anmendments to it over
the years reacting to Medicare changes. |
think the last time we amended Rule 27 is what
we call our Med Supp Rule. The Medigap Rule
was in 2009.

M. Glbraith, if you'll look at Exhibit 3,
that is the markup of the proposed changes that
we woul d ask that the Departnent adopt today.
As you can tell fromExhibit 3, the markup will
show that we've added Section 9.2, and we add a
Section 25. So let's start with those.

The two, basic changes that we're making in
this rule, one is to react to Act 686, which is
Senator Rapert's Act that | have left a copy of
you on Exhibit 4. In Exhibit 4, in the Act it
says, The Insurance Departnent shall anmend
State Insurance Department Rule 27 to allow for
the sale and purchase of certain policies with
Medi gap coverage by Arkansans who are under 65
years of age and have no care due to
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disability. |If you will ook back at the
markup in Section 25, that is where we do that.

In Section 25, we are requiring the issuers
to make avail abl e Medigap policies to persons
who are on disability. That is in Section 25.
Let nme be very clear about that availability.
|f you | ook at Section 25 of the markup -- it's
way back in here -- the language that we added
to meke it available makes it clear, although
the policies --

HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Booth, can you give me a
second --

MR RAND: Yeah

HEARING OFFICER  -- to find this. Because
|'mstill going through this. |Is there an
appendi x back here or have | not gotten to 25
yet? Ch, hold on. | got it. I'mon 26. 25
| got it. Go ahead.

MR RAND: And we're editing the provision
that's newin this rule to conply with Senator
Rapert's Act that requires the Medigap issuers
to offer at |east one of ten Med Supp plans to
persons who are on a disability.

Now, | want to make it very clear that we
are permtting inthis. W are not requiring
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the issuers rate these below 65 with a
disability with the plus-65 group for purposes
of rating. They are going to be separately
rated related to their disability and age. So
the reason for that is to avoid rate increases
that we believe would occur if we were to rate
that group into the plus-65 crowd. They are
di sabl ed and they have al ready an automatic
claimissued there with their condition. So we
are making it available, but they will be
separatel y rated.

Now, one of the things that the |aw
requires is that we make sure that the
availability for the below 65 with a disability
is "conpetitively priced". [|'ve asked the
i ssuers to explain howthey are going to
acconplish that. W know that the policies
wi || probably be nore expensive than the ones
for 65 and above that don't have a disability.
But we're going to encourage the Hearing
Officer to leave the record open so that | can
receive data or comments fromthe issuers
related to how they're going to conpetitively
price the below 65 with disability to nake sure
that it is conpetitive within their system So
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we are nmaking it available with Section 25.

The other change is a separate, unconnected
one and it"'s in -- if you look back on Exhibit
3, which is our markup, under Section 9.2, M.
Hearing Officer, you can see that we added
anot her section, and these are amendnments t hat
we've had to adopt from MACRA -- which is MACRA
is a federal law that stands for Medicare
Access and CH P Reaut horization Act, a.k.a
MACRA

And, essentially, what it is, it's a
federal lawthat was passed |ast year or a year
and a half ago that says, essentially, that
after 2020 for any eligible Medicare
beneficiaries, they are not going to be allowed
to purchase Medigap Plans F and C. And |
adopted, in Section 9.2, the NAIC node
| anguage that the NAI C working group suggested
that the regulators across the country adopt to
conply with MACRA. So Section 9.2 is the NAIC
| anguage that was submtted to the regulators
that was vetted, that we believe conplies with
MACRA

If we don't adopt Section 9.2, we're going
to be preenpted if we don't. So we're
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preenpted under federal law, under MACRA to
exclude Medigap Plans C and F for newy

el igible Medicare beneficiaries who becone
newy eligible after 2020.

Now, what's going on behind that, as |
understand it, Medicare believes that sone of
the Medigap plans, particularly F and C which
cover all out-of-pocket cost for Medicare
beneficiaries, are driving up the Medicare
medi cal cost. People are nore likely to go get
medi cal services, surgeries, and procedures
done if they know that they're going to have no
out of pocket. Medicare wants, as | understand
it, the Medicare beneficiaries to have nore
skin in the game, to have to pay out-of - pocket
cost, to act as a disincentive to
overutilization and some other issues.

So this was something that was federally
filed. It's a federal law that prohibits it
So what we're doing in Section 9.2 is,
essentially, mrroring what the requirenents
are under federal law. If we don't put this in
there, we're going to get preenpted.

So these are the proposed changes to the
rule that we have. Just a couple of comments.
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| guess, the nore controversial issues with
respect to these anendnents are reflected a
little bit in this public coment fromthe
Fresenius Medical Care Goup. The providers
are under the understanding that these new
policies that woul d be available to under 65
and bel ow who are disabled have to be priced
simlarly to the over age 65 plans. That's not
the way we read that. W do want to make sure
that the ones that are available to 65 and
bel ow who are on disability are conpetitively
priced.

The other issue -- and | bhelieve Ms. Pruitt
fromMtchell WIlianms, who represents AH P, or
UHC, may talk about this. It relates to the
effective date. The effective date of this
proposed rule, as its witten right now, is
1/1/2018. As | understand it, one of the
comments is going to be that, if you make these
requi rements apply 1/1/2018, please bear in
mnd that we've already filed for our Medigap
policies this year. So we're not going to bhe
able to, in 2018, adjust to these requirements
until 2019. So all of our Medigap contracts
and policies that you're going to make us cover
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65 and bel ow have al ready been revi ened and
approved by AID in 2018. So we need a year to
wai t.

Now, we could make the issuers file new
policies on 1/1/2018. There's still going to
be a lag time here. So one thing that | want
to do is to suggest to the Hearing Officer to
keep the record open for the conpetitive
pricing and, two, keep it open so that we can
| ook and see how the Departnment can maybe make
the effective date jive with the conpanies
filing requirenents, because they file for
these before this has gone into effect.

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  There's no limtation
fromthe statute in ternms of an effective date?
That was just our own effective date?

MR RAND: Let me read you what the Act

says, and this it says -- the answer is no.
But the Act says, The State Insurance
Department shall amend State Insurance
Department rule to allow for the sale of
certain policies of Medigap coverage who are
under 65 years of age and have Medicare due to
a disability.

It doesn't really say when we have to do
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it. But I will tell you that Senator Rapert
wants this as effective as he probably can get
it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER Wl |, sure, but we don't
want to disrupt --

MR RAND:  True.

HEARING OFFI CER -- or have as little
di sruption as possible, and if that's sonething
that we can do, then | would encourage that.

MR RAND: So we're doing two changes. One
is to conply with MACRA. And, again, the MACRA
changes are not going to apply, in reality,
until 2020, so we've got a little bit of tine
there for people to get off Cs and Fs. And
then the other change is related to the
availability of under 65 and the understanding
that they' re going to be rated separately.

HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Has the Depart ment
responded to the public coment that we got in
terms of alleviating their concerns?

MR RAND: Not yet.

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  No? (kay.

MR RAND: Not yet.

HEARI NG OFFI CER.  And are you ready for
publ i c comrent ?
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MR RAND:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER. Do we have anybody t hat
wants to speak on this rule here today? If you
woul d, just identify yourself and have a seat
right there, that'd be great.

MS. PRUTT. Good norning. M nane is
Kendra Pruitt. I'mwth the Mtchell WIIians
Law Firm |'mhere on behal f of Anerica's
Heal th Insurance Plans, and | have a letter in
support of the proposed change, offering just
one change to the proposal, as M. Rand
mentioned, and that's the effective date.

The letter fromAnerica' s Heal th Insurance
Plans is absolutely in support of it, but they
woul d propose that the rule change the
effective date fromJanuary 1, 2018, because
the menbers woul d be hard pressed to inplenent
those substantial changes by that deadline. |
believe that they have indicated in the letter
that |1, again, want to enter into the record,
an effective date of January 1, 2019. However,
we understand that there is an interest to have
those changes in place next year. So we woul d
propose that, at the earliest, July 1, 2018.
And so here's this letter
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MR RAND: July 2018 mght work. M
problemwth this is with MACRA.

HEARI NG OFFI CER How woul d we | abel that
exhibit, Booth? 17A and B? Because that's
public comrent, so we're going to add that to
17.

MR RAND: This will be 17B

HEARI NG OFFI CER Anything el se?

MS. PRUTT. That is it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER. Thank you

MS. PRUTT. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  |s there anyone el se that
wants to speak on this rule?

(No audi bl e response given)

HEARING OFFI CER If not, then we're going
to keep the record open, as you suggested, on
the conpetitive pricing issue, but also on our
determination of the effective date.

MR RAND: Yes, sir

HEARI NG OFFI CER. What is your suggestion
on how | ong we shoul d keep that open?

MR RAND: Twenty days. | believe Joint

I nterimComrerce -- Insurance and Cormmerce
nmeets on the 7th of November. That's just not
enough time. | mean, the law only requires us
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to get it reviewed before January 1st, so
think we've got sonme tine. So 20 days is fine
with me.

HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Then we' || keep the
record open for 20 days for those two specific
| ssues.

|'s there anything el se for the good of the
order?

MR RAND: No, sir. That isit.

HEARI NG OFFI CER. Do you have a
questi on/ conment ?

MS. CLEMENTS: |'mLevern Cenments and |
work in SHIP. | have a question. If you
coul d repeat why you're no |onger making
Policies C and F available.

MR RAND: That's not us. That's the
federal governnent.

MS. CLEMENTS: What is it?

MR RAND: The federal government, CMS, has
deci ded that people with C and F which
basically, as | understand it, cover 100
percent of your out of pocket cost. They are a
problemto CMS because people tend to utilize
the Medicare services because they know that if
they've got a Cand F, they're nore likely to
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use as nuch nedi cal services as they can

That's ny understanding of what's going on
behind MACRA. And, again, they're going to
make these changes inplement on 2020, so you've
got alittle bit of a w ndow.

So, the other products that are not C and
F, which have nore significant cost sharing
responsibilities, | don't know how those are
going to be adjusted, if they are required to
be. But that's not sonething that the state is
removi ng.

MS. CLEMENTS: Federal. Ckay.

MR RAND: That is federal. If we don't
put this in there, it will be removed whether
we do or don't.

HEARING OFFICER. Wl |, if there's not
anything el se, then the record will stay open
for 20 days, and the hearing is adjourned at
10: 20.

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concl uded
inthis matter at 10:20 a.m)
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CERTI FI CATE
STATE OF ARKANSAS )
) SS

COUNTY OF PULASKI )

|, Faith Gigshy, CCR Certified Stenomask
Reporter before whomthe foregoing testinony was
taken, do hereby certify that the witness was duly
sworn by me; that the testimony of said wtness was
taken by me and was thereafter reduced to typewitten
formunder ny supervision; that the depositionis a
true and correct record of the testinony given by said
wi tness; that | amneither counsel for, related to,
nor enployed by the parties to the action in which
this deposition was taken, and further, that | am not
a relative or enployee of any attorney or counse
enpl oyed by the parties hereto, nor financially
interested in the outcone of this action

| FURTHER CERTIFY, that | have no contract with
the parties within this action that affects or has a
substantial tendency to affect inpartiality, that
requires ne to relinquish control of an origina
deposition transcript or copies of the transcript
before it is certified and delivered to the custodia
attorney, or that requires me to provide any service
not nmade available to all parties to the action

W TNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this 1st day of
Novenber, 2017.

FAI TH GRI GSBY
Arkansas State Suprenme Court
Certified Court Reporter #686
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| NDEX
STYLE AND NUMBER . . . . . . .« . v v i 1 1 PROCEEDINGS
APPEARANCES . . . . . . . 1|2 OCTOBER 23, 2017
CAPTION . . . . . . . 3 | 3 HEARING OFFICER: Well, good morning. It
PROCEEDINGS - . . o 4 | 4 is10:00 on October 23, 2017, and we are here
PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED . . - - e e 8 | 5 inthe matter of the Proposed Amended Rule 27,
COURT REPORTER S CERTIFICATE . . . . . . . . . . . .. 19 . .
EXHI BI TS 6 Minimum Standards for Medicare Supplement
Exhibit 1 Designation of Hearing Cfficer (1 Page) . 6 | / Policies. My nameis Russ Galbraith and
Exhibit 2 Rule 27 (127 Pages) . . . . . . . . . . .. 6 | 8 Commissioner Kerr has designated me as the
Exhibit 3 Mark-Up Rule 27 (133 Pages) . . . . . . . 6 9 hearlng offlca' In thls matter. Reprewr]tl ng
Exhibit 4 Act 684 (2 Pages) . . . . . . . . . . . .. 6 10 the Department is Booth Rand
Exhibit 5 Notice of Public Hearing (2 Pages) . . . . 6 . ’
Exhibit 6 Summary (1 Page) . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 6 11 BOOth’ you can get it started. . )
Exhibit 7 Electronic Mail Distribution (2 Pages) . 6 |12 MR. RAND: Thank you, Mr. Hearing Officer.
Exhibit 8 Greg Sterne Letter (3 Pages) . . . . . . . 6 |13 I'vegot quite afew documents that we would
Exhibit 9 Copy of Ad (2 Pages) . . . .. . . . ... 6 114 liketo submit into the administrative record,
Exhi bit 10 Donna Davis Letter (1 Page) . . . . . . . 6 15 most all of which are asyou are aware
Exhibit 11  Questionnaire (3 Pages) . . . . . . . . . . 6 . ’ ’
Exhi bit 12 I npact Statenent (5 Pages) . . . . . . . . 6 16 reql‘_" red_ by the APA and the Bureau of
Exhibit 13 Secretary of State Letter (1 Page) . . . . 6 |17 Legidative Research and the Arkansas statutes.
Exhibit 14 Sara Farris Letter (1 Page) . . . . . . . 6 |18  Thefirst exhibit isyour Designation of
Bxhibit 15 Pat Brown Letter (1 Page) . . . . . . . .. 6 119 Hearing Officer signed by the Commissioner.
Exhibit 16 Mary Brewer Letter (1 Page) . . . . ... ® 120 Exhibit Number 2 isthe copy of the Proposed
Exhi bit 17 Public Comrents (3 Pages) . . . . . . . . . 6 , . _
21 Rule27. It'snot been signed yet. Exhibit
Rl GSBY R ORIH NG, PRV CES 22 Number 3 isacopy of the markup of proposed
23 Rule 27. The markup shows the changesto AID
24 Rule 27 that we propose to have the Department
25 adopt today.
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1 Exhibit 4 is acopy of Act 684 of the 1 MR. RAND: The Arkansas Insurance
2 Arkansas State L egislature, formerly Senate 2 Department Rule 27 that we're reviewing today
3 Bill 642 sponsored by Senator Rapert, whichis 3 isapre-existing Arkansas I nsurance Department
4 one of the reasons why we're heretoday. The 4 rule. Thisisnot anew rule. We are making
5 act requires the Insurance Department to modify 5 amendmentstoit. It's, | don't know, 25/30
6 itscurrent Rule 27 to alow for the sale of 6 yearsold. We have made amendmentsto it over
7 Medigap policiesto individuals under 65 with a 7 theyearsreacting to Medicare changes. |
8 disability. 8 think the last time we amended Rule 27 is what
9 Exhibit Number 5 is a copy of the Notice of 9 we call our Med Supp Rule. The Medigap Rule
10 Public Hearing that went out, that was issued. 10 wasin 2009.
11 Exhibit 6 isasummary that | wrote for the BLR 11 Mr. Galbraith, if you'll look at Exhibit 3,
12 describing the proposed changes. Exhibit 7 is 12 that isthe markup of the proposed changes that
13 acopy of the electronic mail distribution 13 wewould ask that the Department adopt today.
14 blast, which included the NOPH, which links the 14 Asyou can tell from Exhibit 3, the markup will
15 NOPH to arulefor the industry review for 15 show that we've added Section 9.2, and we add a
16 comments. 16 Section 25. So let's start with those.
17 Exhibit 8 is a cover letter that we sent to 17  Thetwo, basic changes that we're making in
18 the Arkansas Democrat Gazette advising them 18 thisrule, oneisto react to Act 686, whichis
19 that we wish to run newspaper notice describing 19 Senator Rapert's Act that | have left a copy of
20 the date and time for the proposed rule changes 20 you on Exhibit 4. In Exhibit 4, inthe Act it
21 and to describe to the public when and where we 21 says, The Insurance Department shall amend
22 were going to meet to discuss theserule 22 State Insurance Department Rule 27 to allow for
23 changes for today, October 23rd at 10:00 am. 23 the sale and purchase of certain policies with
24 | believe the newspaper notice ran for three 24 Medigap coverage by Arkansans who are under 65
25 days, asit'srequired to, on 9/18, 9/19, 9/20. 25 years of age and have no care dueto
Page 6 Page 8
1 That'sin Exhibit 9. 1 disability. If you will look back at the
2 Exhibit 10 isa cover letter to Donna Davis 2 markup in Section 25, that is where we do that.
3 at Arkansas Legidative Council that enclosed a 3 In Section 25, we are requiring the issuers
4 copy of the proposed rule. Exhibits 11 and 12 4 to make available Medigap policiesto persons
5 arefilingsthat we make with the cover letter 5 who areon disability. That isin Section 25.
6 and proposed rule to Arkansas Legidlative 6 Let mebe very clear about that availability.
7 Council. Therest of theitems, 13 through 16, 7 If youlook at Section 25 of the markup -- it's
8 arelettersthat we send as a matter of 8 way back in here -- the language that we added
9 courtesy to various officials describing our 9 to makeit available makesit clear, although
10 proposed rule changes. 10 thepolicies--
11 Exhibit 17 is an open area where we receive 11 HEARING OFFICER: Booth, can you give me a
12 public comments. I've only gotten one public 12 second --
13 comment today and it's from Fresenius Medical 13 MR. RAND: Yeah.
14 Care Group that | would like to admit into the 14 HEARING OFFICER: -- to find this. Because
15 record. It makesacomment. So | will talk 15 I'm still going through this. Istherean
16 about their letter in aminute. But | would 16 appendix back here or have | not gotten to 25
17 make that as part of Exhibit Number 17. And | 17 yet? Oh, holdon. | gotit. I'mon26. 25.
18 move to admit thoseitemsinto the 18 | gotit. Go ahead.
19 administrative record. 19 MR. RAND: And we're editing the provision
20 HEARING OFFICER: So, without objection, 20 that's new in thisrule to comply with Senator
21 Department's Exhibits 1 through 17 will be 21 Rapert's Act that requires the Medigap issuers
22 added to the record, and you can continue. 22 to offer at least one of ten Med Supp plans to
23 (WHEREUPON, Exhibits Number 1 through 17 23 persons who are on adisability.
24 were marked for identification and are attached 24 Now, | want to make it very clear that we
25 hereto.) 25 are permitting in this. We are not requiring
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1 theissuersrate these below 65 with a 1 preempted under federal law, under MACRA, to
2 disability with the plus-65 group for purposes 2 exclude Medigap Plans C and F for newly
3 of rating. They are going to be separately 3 digible Medicare beneficiaries who become
4 rated related to their disability and age. So 4 newly €eligible after 2020.
5 thereason for that is to avoid rate increases 5 Now, what's going on behind that, as|
6 that we believe would occur if we wereto rate 6 understand it, Medicare believes that some of
7 that group into the plus-65 crowd. They are 7 the Medigap plans, particularly F and C, which
8 disabled and they have already an automatic 8 cover al out-of-pocket cost for Medicare
9 claim issued there with their condition. So we 9 beneficiaries, are driving up the Medicare
10 aremaking it available, but they will be 10 medical cost. People are more likely to go get
11 separately rated. 11 medical services, surgeries, and procedures
12 Now, one of the things that the law 12 doneif they know that they're going to have no
13 requiresisthat we make sure that the 13 out of pocket. Medicare wants, as| understand
14 availability for the below 65 with a disability 14 it, the Medicare beneficiaries to have more
15 is"competitively priced". I've asked the 15 skinin the game, to have to pay out-of-pocket
16 issuersto explain how they are going to 16 cogt, to act asadisincentive to
17 accomplish that. We know that the policies 17 overutilization and some other issues.
18 will probably be more expensive than the ones 18  Sothiswas something that was federally
19 for 65 and above that don't have a disability. 19 filed. It'safedera law that prohibitsit.
20 But we're going to encourage the Hearing 20 So what we're doing in Section 9.2 s,
21 Officer to leave the record open so that | can 21 essentialy, mirroring what the requirements
22 receive data or comments from the issuers 22 areunder federal law. If we don't put thisin
23 related to how they're going to competitively 23 there, we're going to get preempted.
24 price the below 65 with disability to make sure 24 So these are the proposed changesto the
25 that it is competitive within their system. So 25 rulethat we have. Just a couple of comments.
Page 10 Page 12
1 weare making it available with Section 25. 1 | guess, the more controversial issues with
2 Theother changeis a separate, unconnected 2 respect to these amendments are reflected a
3 oneandit'sin -- if you look back on Exhibit 3 little bit in this public comment from the
4 3, whichisour markup, under Section 9.2, Mr. 4 Fresenius Medical Care Group. The providers
5 Hearing Officer, you can see that we added 5 are under the understanding that these new
6 another section, and these are amendments that 6 policiesthat would be available to under 65
7 we've had to adopt from MACRA -- whichis MACRA 7 and below who are disabled have to be priced
8 isafederal law that stands for Medicare 8 similarly to the over age 65 plans. That's not
9 Access and CHIP Reauthorization Act, ak.a 9 theway we read that. We do want to make sure
10 MACRA. 10 that the onesthat are available to 65 and
11 And, essentialy, what it is, it'sa 11 below who are on disability are competitively
12 federal law that was passed last year or ayear 12 priced.
13 and ahalf ago that says, essentially, that 13 Theotherissue-- and | believe Ms. Pruitt
14 after 2020 for any eligible Medicare 14 from Mitchell Williams, who represents AHIP, or
15 beneficiaries, they are not going to be allowed 15 UHC, may talk about this. It relatesto the
16 to purchase Medigap PlansF and C. And | 16 effective date. The effective date of this
17 adopted, in Section 9.2, the NAIC model 17 proposed rule, asits written right now, is
18 language that the NAIC working group suggested 18 1/1/2018. As| understand it, one of the
19 that the regulators across the country adopt to 19 commentsis going to bethat, if you make these
20 comply with MACRA. So Section 9.2 isthe NAIC 20 requirements apply 1/1/2018, please bear in
21 language that was submitted to the regulators 21 mind that we've aready filed for our Medigap
22 that was vetted, that we believe complies with 22 policiesthisyear. Sowe're not going to be
23 MACRA. 23 ableto, in 2018, adjust to these requirements
24 If we don't adopt Section 9.2, we're going 24 until 2019. So all of our Medigap contracts
25 to be preempted if we don't. So we're 25 and policiesthat you're going to make us cover
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1 65 and below have already been reviewed and 1 MR. RAND: Yes.
2 approved by AID in 2018. So we need ayear to 2 HEARING OFFICER: Do we have anybody that
3 wait. 3 wantsto speak on thisrule here today? If you
4 Now, we could make the issuers file new 4 would, just identify yourself and have a seat
5 policieson 1/1/2018. There's still going to 5 right there, that'd be great.
6 bealagtime here. So onethingthat | want 6 MS. PRUITT: Good morning. My nameis
7 todoisto suggest to the Hearing Officer to 7 KendraPruitt. I'm with the Mitchell Williams
8 keep the record open for the competitive 8 Law Firm. I'm here on behalf of America's
9 pricing and, two, keep it open so that we can 9 Health Insurance Plans, and | have aletter in
10 look and see how the Department can maybe make 10 support of the proposed change, offering just
11 the effective date jive with the companies 11 one change to the proposal, as Mr. Rand
12 filing requirements, because they file for 12 mentioned, and that's the effective date.
13 these before this has gone into effect. 13 Theletter from Americas Health Insurance
14  HEARING OFFICER: There's no limitation 14 Plansisabsolutely in support of it, but they
15 from the statute in terms of an effective date? 15 would propose that the rule change the
16 That was just our own effective date? 16 effective date from January 1, 2018, because
17 MR. RAND: Let me read you what the Act 17 the members would be hard pressed to implement
18 says, and thisit says -- the answer is no. 18 those substantial changes by that deadline. |
19 But the Act says, The State Insurance 19 believethat they have indicated in the letter
20 Department shall amend State Insurance 20 that I, again, want to enter into the record,
21 Department ruleto alow for the sale of 21 an effective date of January 1, 2019. However,
22 certain policies of Medigap coverage who are 22 we understand that thereis an interest to have
23 under 65 years of age and have Medicare due to 23 those changesin place next year. So we would
24 adisability. 24 propose that, at the earliest, July 1, 2018.
25  Itdoesn't realy say when we haveto do 25 And so here'sthis|etter.
Page 14 Page 16
1 it. But | will tell you that Senator Rapert 1 MR. RAND: July 2018 might work. My
2 wantsthis as effective as he probably can get 2 problem with thisiswith MACRA.
3 it 3  HEARING OFFICER: How would we label that
4 HEARING OFFICER: Well, sure, but we don't 4 exhibit, Booth? 17A and B? Because that's
5 want to disrupt -- 5 public comment, so we're going to add that to
6 MR. RAND: True. 6 17.
7  HEARING OFFICER: -- or have as little 7 MR. RAND: Thiswill be 17B.
8 disruption as possible, and if that's something 8 HEARING OFFICER: Anything else?
9 that we can do, then | would encourage that. 9 MS. PRUITT: That isit.
10 MR. RAND: So we're doing two changes. One 10 HEARING OFFICER: Thank you.
11 isto comply with MACRA. And, again, the MACRA 11 MS. PRUITT: Thank you.
12 changes are not going to apply, in reality, 12 HEARING OFFICER: Isthere anyone el se that
13 until 2020, so we've got alittle bit of time 13 wantsto speak on thisrule?
14 therefor peopleto get off Csand Fs. And 14 (No audible response given)
15 then the other change isrelated to the 15 HEARING OFFICER: If not, then we're going
16 availability of under 65 and the understanding 16 to keep the record open, as you suggested, on
17 that they're going to be rated separately. 17 the competitive pricing issue, but also on our
18 HEARING OFFICER: Has the Department 18 determination of the effective date.
19 responded to the public comment that we got in 19 MR. RAND: Yes, sir.
20 terms of aleviating their concerns? 20 HEARING OFFICER: What is your suggestion
21 MR. RAND: Not yet. 21 on how long we should keep that open?
22 HEARING OFFICER: No? Okay. 22 MR. RAND: Twenty days. | believe Joint
23 MR. RAND: Not yet. 23 Interim Commerce -- Insurance and Commerce
24  HEARING OFFICER: And are you ready for 24 meets on the 7th of November. That'sjust not
25 public comment? 25 enoughtime. | mean, the law only requires us
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to get it reviewed before January 1st, so |
think we've got sometime. So 20 daysisfine
with me.

HEARING OFFICER: Then we'll keep the
record open for 20 days for those two specific
issues.

Isthere anything else for the good of the
order?

MR. RAND: No, sir. Thatisit.

HEARING OFFICER: Do you have a
guestion/comment?

MS. CLEMENTS: I'm Levern Clements and |
work in SHIIP. | have aquestion. If you
could repeat why you're no longer making
Policies C and F available.

MR. RAND: That'snot us. That'sthe
federal government.

MS. CLEMENTS: What isit?

MR. RAND: The federal government, CMS, has
decided that people with C and F which,
basicaly, as| understand it, cover 100
percent of your out of pocket cost. They area
problem to CM S because people tend to utilize
the Medicare services because they know that if
they've got aC and F, they're more likely to
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use as much medical services asthey can.

That's my understanding of what's going on
behind MACRA. And, again, they're going to
make these changes implement on 2020, so you've
got alittle bit of awindow.

So, the other products that are not C and
F, which have more significant cost sharing
responsibilities, | don't know how those are
going to be adjusted, if they are required to
be. But that's not something that the stateis
removing.

MS. CLEMENTS: Federal. Okay.

MR. RAND: That isfedera. If wedon't
put thisin there, it will be removed whether
we do or don't.

HEARING OFFICER: Wdll, if there's not
anything else, then the record will stay open
for 20 days, and the hearing is adjourned at
10:20.

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concluded
in this matter at 10:20 am.)
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CAPTI ON
PROCEEDI NGS i n the above-styl ed and nunbered cause
on the 23rd day of Cctober, 2017, before Faith G gsby,
Arkansas Supreme Court Certified Court Reporter #686, at
10: 00 a.m, in the Hearing Room of the Arkansas
I nsurance Departnent, 1200 West Third Street, Little
Rock, Arkansas, pursuant to the agreenent hereinafter

set forth.
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PROCEEDI NGS
OCTOBER 23, 2017

HEARI NG OFFI CER: Wl |, good norning. It
is 10: 00 on Cctober 23, 2017, and we are here
in the matter of the Proposed Anended Rul e 27,
M ni mum St andards for Medi care Suppl enent
Policies. M nane is Russ Gal braith and
Comm ssi oner Kerr has designated ne as the
hearing officer in this matter. Representing
t he Department i s Booth Rand.

Boot h, you can get it started.

MR. RAND: Thank you, M. Hearing Oficer.
|'"ve got quite a few docunents that we would
like to submt into the admnistrative record,
nost all of which are, as you are aware,
required by the APA and the Bureau of
Legi sl ati ve Research and the Arkansas statutes.

The first exhibit is your Designation of
Hearing O ficer signed by the Conmm ssioner.
Exhi bit Nunber 2 is the copy of the Proposed
Rule 27. 1t's not been signed yet. Exhibit
Nunber 3 is a copy of the markup of proposed
Rul e 27. The markup shows the changes to AID
Rul e 27 that we propose to have the Depart nent

adopt today.
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Exhibit 4 is a copy of Act 684 of the
Arkansas State Legislature, fornerly Senate
Bill 642 sponsored by Senator Rapert, which is
one of the reasons why we're here today. The
act requires the Insurance Departnent to nodify
its current Rule 27 to allow for the sale of
Medi gap policies to individuals under 65 with a
di sability.

Exhi bit Number 5 is a copy of the Notice of
Public Hearing that went out, that was issued.
Exhibit 6 is a summary that | wote for the BLR
descri bing the proposed changes. Exhibit 7 is
a copy of the electronic mail distribution
bl ast, which included the NOPH, which Iinks the
NOPH to a rule for the industry review for
comment s.

Exhibit 8 is a cover letter that we sent to
t he Arkansas Denocrat Gazette advising them
that we wish to run newspaper notice describing
the date and tine for the proposed rul e changes
and to describe to the public when and where we
were going to nmeet to discuss these rule
changes for today, October 23rd at 10:00 a.m
| believe the newspaper notice ran for three

days, as it's required to, on 9/18, 9/19, 9/20.
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That's in Exhibit 9.

Exhibit 10 is a cover letter to Donna Davis
at Arkansas Legislative Council that enclosed a
copy of the proposed rule. Exhibits 11 and 12
are filings that we make with the cover letter
and proposed rule to Arkansas Legislative
Council. The rest of the itens, 13 through 16,
are letters that we send as a matter of
courtesy to various officials describing our
proposed rul e changes.

Exhibit 17 is an open area where we receive
public comments. |'ve only gotten one public
comment today and it's from Freseni us Medi ca
Care Goup that I would like to admt into the
record. It nmakes a comment. So | will talk
about their letter in a mnute. But |I would
make that as part of Exhibit Nunber 17. And |
nove to admt those itens into the
adm ni strative record

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So, wi thout objection,
Departnment's Exhibits 1 through 17 will be
added to the record, and you can conti nue.

(WHEREUPON, Exhi bits Nunmber 1 through 17
were marked for identification and are attached

hereto.)
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MR RAND: The Arkansas |nsurance
Departnent Rule 27 that we're review ng today
s a pre-existing Arkansas |nsurance Depart nment
rule. This is not a newrule. W are making
amendnments to it. It's, | don't know, 25/30
years old. W have made anendnents to it over
the years reacting to Medi care changes. |
think the last tinme we anended Rule 27 is what
we call our Med Supp Rule. The Medigap Rule
was in 2009.

M. Glbraith, if you'll |ook at Exhibit 3,
that is the markup of the proposed changes that
we woul d ask that the Departnent adopt today.
As you can tell fromExhibit 3, the markup wl |l
show that we've added Section 9.2, and we add a
Section 25. So let's start with those.

The two, basic changes that we're making in
this rule, one is to react to Act 686, which is
Senat or Rapert's Act that | have left a copy of
you on Exhibit 4. In Exhibit 4, in the Act it
says, The Insurance Departnent shall anend
State I nsurance Departnent Rule 27 to allow for
t he sale and purchase of certain policies with
Medi gap coverage by Arkansans who are under 65

years of age and have no care due to

GRI GSBY REPORTI NG SERVI CES
(501) 580-5117






© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

disability. If you will |ook back at the
mar kup in Section 25, that is where we do that.

In Section 25, we are requiring the issuers
to make avail abl e Medigap policies to persons
who are on disability. That is in Section 25.
Let nme be very clear about that availability.

If you | ook at Section 25 of the markup -- it's
way back in here -- the |anguage that we added
to make it avail able makes it clear, although
the policies --

HEARI NG OFFI CER  Boot h, can you give ne a
second - -

MR RAND: Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER:  -- to find this. Because
I["'mstill going through this. 1s there an
appendi x back here or have | not gotten to 25
yet? OCh, hold on. | got it. I'mon 26. 25.
| got it. Co ahead.

MR. RAND: And we're editing the provision
that's newin this rule to conply wth Senator
Rapert's Act that requires the Medigap issuers
to offer at |east one of ten Med Supp plans to
persons who are on a disability.

Now, | want to make it very clear that we

are permtting inthis. W are not requiring

GRI GSBY REPORTI NG SERVI CES
(501) 580-5117






© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

the issuers rate these below 65 with a
disability with the plus-65 group for purposes
of rating. They are going to be separately
rated related to their disability and age. So
the reason for that is to avoid rate increases
that we believe would occur if we were to rate
that group into the plus-65 crowd. They are
di sabl ed and they have already an autonmatic
claimissued there with their condition. So we
are making it available, but they will be
separately rated.

Now, one of the things that the | aw
requires is that we nake sure that the
availability for the below 65 with a disability
is "conpetitively priced". 1've asked the
I ssuers to explain how they are going to
acconplish that. W know that the policies
wi || probably be nore expensive than the ones
for 65 and above that don't have a disability.
But we're going to encourage the Hearing
Oficer to leave the record open so that | can
receive data or comments fromthe issuers
related to how they're going to conpetitively
price the below 65 with disability to make sure

that it is conpetitive within their system So
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we are nmaking it available with Section 25.

The ot her change is a separate, unconnected
one and it's in -- if you ook back on Exhibit
3, which is our markup, under Section 9.2, M.
Hearing Officer, you can see that we added
anot her section, and these are anendnents that
we' ve had to adopt from MACRA -- which is MACRA
Is a federal |law that stands for Medicare
Access and CHI P Reaut horization Act, a.k.a
MACRA.

And, essentially, what it is, it's a
federal |aw that was passed |ast year or a year
and a half ago that says, essentially, that
after 2020 for any eligible Medicare
beneficiaries, they are not going to be allowed
to purchase Medigap Plans F and C. And |
adopted, in Section 9.2, the NAI C nodel
| anguage that the NAI C worki ng group suggested
that the regulators across the country adopt to
comply with MACRA. So Section 9.2 is the NAIC
| anguage that was submtted to the regulators
that was vetted, that we believe conplies with
MACRA.

| f we don't adopt Section 9.2, we're going

to be preenpted if we don't. So we're
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preenpted under federal |aw, under MACRA, to
excl ude Medigap Plans C and F for newy

el i gi bl e Medi care beneficiaries who becone
newly eligible after 2020.

Now, what's going on behind that, as I
understand it, Medicare believes that sone of
the Medigap plans, particularly F and C, which
cover all out-of-pocket cost for Medicare
beneficiaries, are driving up the Medicare
medi cal cost. People are nore likely to go get
medi cal services, surgeries, and procedures
done if they know that they're going to have no
out of pocket. Medicare wants, as | understand
It, the Medicare beneficiaries to have nore
skin in the gane, to have to pay out-of - pocket
cost, to act as a disincentive to
overutilization and sone other issues.

So this was sonething that was federally
filed. It's a federal law that prohibits it.
So what we're doing in Section 9.2 is,
essentially, mrroring what the requirenents
are under federal law. If we don't put this in
there, we're going to get preenpted.

So these are the proposed changes to the

rule that we have. Just a couple of comments.

11
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| guess, the nore controversial issues wth
respect to these anendnents are reflected a
little bit in this public coment fromthe
Fresenius Medical Care Group. The providers
are under the understanding that these new
policies that woul d be avail able to under 65
and bel ow who are di sabl ed have to be priced
simlarly to the over age 65 plans. That's not
the way we read that. W do want to make sure
that the ones that are available to 65 and
bel ow who are on disability are conpetitively
priced.

The other issue -- and | believe Ms. Pruitt
fromMtchell WIlianms, who represents AH P, or
UHC, may tal k about this. It relates to the
effective date. The effective date of this
proposed rule, as its witten right now, is
1/1/2018. As | understand it, one of the
comments is going to be that, if you make these
requi rements apply 1/1/ 2018, pl ease bear in
mnd that we've already filed for our Medigap
policies this year. So we're not going to be
able to, in 2018, adjust to these requirenents
until 2019. So all of our Medigap contracts

and policies that you' re going to nmake us cover
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65 and bel ow have al ready been reviewed and
approved by AID in 2018. So we need a year to
wai t .

Now, we could make the issuers file new
policies on 1/1/2018. There's still going to
be a lag tine here. So one thing that | want
to do is to suggest to the Hearing Oficer to
keep the record open for the conpetitive
pricing and, two, keep it open so that we can
| ook and see how the Departnent can maybe nake
the effective date jive with the conpanies
filing requirenents, because they file for
these before this has gone into effect.

HEARI NG OFFICER.  There's no limtation

fromthe statute in terns of an effective date?

That was just our own effective date?

MR RAND: Let nme read you what the Act
says, and this it says -- the answer is no.
But the Act says, The State |nsurance
Departnent shall anmend State |nsurance
Departnent rule to allow for the sal e of
certain policies of Medigap coverage who are
under 65 years of age and have Medicare due to
a disability.

It doesn't really say when we have to do

13
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it. But | will tell you that Senator Rapert
wants this as effective as he probably can get
it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER: Wl |, sure, but we don't
want to disrupt --

MR RAND: True.

HEARI NG OFFICER:  -- or have as little
di sruption as possible, and if that's sonething
that we can do, then | would encourage that.

MR RAND: So we're doing two changes. One
is to conply with MACRA. And, again, the MACRA
changes are not going to apply, in reality,
until 2020, so we've got a little bit of time
there for people to get off Cs and Fs. And
then the other change is related to the
availability of under 65 and the understandi ng
that they're going to be rated separately.

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Has the Depart nent
responded to the public conment that we got in
ternms of alleviating their concerns?

MR RAND: Not vyet.

HEARI NG OFFI CER°  No? Ckay.

MR RAND: Not vyet.

HEARI NG OFFI CER. And are you ready for

public coment ?

14
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15

MR RAND: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER Do we have anybody t hat
wants to speak on this rule here today? If you
woul d, just identify yourself and have a seat
right there, that'd be great.

M5. PRU TT: Good norning. M nane is
Kendra Pruitt. I'mwith the Mtchell WIIians
Law Firm |'m here on behalf of Anerica's
Heal th I nsurance Plans, and | have a letter in
support of the proposed change, offering just
one change to the proposal, as M. Rand
mentioned, and that's the effective date.

The letter fromAnerica's Health |nsurance
Plans is absolutely in support of it, but they
woul d propose that the rule change the
effective date fromJanuary 1, 2018, because
t he menbers woul d be hard pressed to inplenent
t hose substantial changes by that deadline. |
bel i eve that they have indicated in the letter
that |1, again, want to enter into the record,
an effective date of January 1, 2019. However
we understand that there is an interest to have
t hose changes in place next year. So we would
propose that, at the earliest, July 1, 2018.

And so here's this letter
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MR. RAND: July 2018 m ght work. M
problemwth this is wth MACRA

HEARI NG OFFI CER°  How woul d we | abel that
exhi bit, Booth? 17A and B? Because that's
public comrent, so we're going to add that to
17.

MR RAND: This will be 17B.

HEARI NG OFFI CER. Anyt hi ng el se?

M5. PRUTT:. That is it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you

MS. PRU TT: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER.  |s there anyone el se that
wants to speak on this rule?

(No audi bl e response given)

HEARI NG OFFICER:  |If not, then we're going
to keep the record open, as you suggested, on
t he conpetitive pricing issue, but also on our
determ nation of the effective date.

MR RAND: Yes, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER. What i s your suggestion
on how | ong we shoul d keep that open?

MR RAND: Twenty days. | believe Joint
I nteri mComrerce -- Insurance and Conmmerce
nmeets on the 7th of Novenber. That's just not

enough tine. | nmean, the law only requires us

16
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to get it reviewed before January 1st, so |
think we've got sone tine. So 20 days is fine
wth ne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Then we' || keep the
record open for 20 days for those two specific
| ssues.

| s there anything else for the good of the
order?

MR RAND: No, sir. That is it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER Do you have a
questi on/ comment ?

MS. CLEMENTS: |'m Levern denents and |
work in SHIP. | have a question. |If you
coul d repeat why you're no | onger naking
Policies C and F avail abl e.

MR RAND: That's not us. That's the
f ederal governnent.

M5. CLEMENTS: What is it?

MR. RAND: The federal government, CMS, has
deci ded that people with C and F which
basically, as | understand it, cover 100
percent of your out of pocket cost. They are a
problemto CM5 because people tend to utilize
t he Medi care services because they know that if

they've got a Cand F, they're nore likely to
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use as nmuch nedi cal services as they can

That's ny understandi ng of what's going on
behi nd MACRA. And, again, they're going to
make these changes i npl enent on 2020, so you' ve
got a little bit of a w ndow.

So, the other products that are not C and
F, which have nore significant cost sharing
responsibilities, |I don't know how t hose are
going to be adjusted, if they are required to
be. But that's not sonething that the state is
removi ng.

M5. CLEMENTS: Federal. Ckay.

MR RAND: That is federal. |If we don't
put this in there, it will be renoved whet her
we do or don't.

HEARI NG OFFICER: Wl |, if there's not
anything el se, then the record will stay open
for 20 days, and the hearing is adjourned at
10: 20.

(WHEREUPQN, the proceedi ngs were concl uded

in this matter at 10:20 a.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

STATE OF ARKANSAS )
)ss
COUNTY OF PULASKI )

|, Faith Gigsby, CCR Certified Stenomask
Reporter before whomthe foregoing testinony was
taken, do hereby certify that the witness was duly
sworn by ne; that the testinony of said wtness was
taken by ne and was thereafter reduced to typewitten
formunder ny supervision; that the depositionis a
true and correct record of the testinony given by said
witness; that | amneither counsel for, related to,
nor enployed by the parties to the action in which
this deposition was taken, and further, that | am not
a relative or enployee of any attorney or counsel
enpl oyed by the parties hereto, nor financially
interested in the outconme of this action.

| FURTHER CERTI FY, that | have no contract with
the parties within this action that affects or has a
substantial tendency to affect inpartiality, that
requires me to relinquish control of an origina
deposition transcript or copies of the transcript
before it is certified and delivered to the custodi al
attorney, or that requires me to provide any service
not nmade available to all parties to the action.

W TNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this 1st day of
Novenber, 2017.

FAI TH GRI GSBY
Arkansas State Suprene Court
Certified Court Reporter #686
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            2         PROCEEDINGS in the above-styled and numbered cause
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            1                             PROCEEDINGS


            2                           OCTOBER 23, 2017


            3                   HEARING OFFICER:  Well, good morning.  It


            4              is 10:00 on October 23, 2017, and we are here


            5              in the matter of the Proposed Amended Rule 27,


            6              Minimum Standards for Medicare Supplement


            7              Policies.  My name is Russ Galbraith and


            8              Commissioner Kerr has designated me as the


            9              hearing officer in this matter.  Representing


           10              the Department is Booth Rand.


           11                   Booth, you can get it started.


           12                   MR. RAND:  Thank you, Mr. Hearing Officer. 


           13              I've got quite a few documents that we would


           14              like to submit into the administrative record,


           15              most all of which are, as you are aware,


           16              required by the APA and the Bureau of


           17              Legislative Research and the Arkansas statutes.


           18                   The first exhibit is your Designation of


           19              Hearing Officer signed by the Commissioner. 


           20              Exhibit Number 2 is the copy of the Proposed


           21              Rule 27.  It's not been signed yet.  Exhibit


           22              Number 3 is a copy of the markup of proposed


           23              Rule 27.  The markup shows the changes to AID


           24              Rule 27 that we propose to have the Department


           25              adopt today.
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            1                   Exhibit 4 is a copy of Act 684 of the


            2              Arkansas State Legislature, formerly Senate


            3              Bill 642 sponsored by Senator Rapert, which is


            4              one of the reasons why we're here today.  The


            5              act requires the Insurance Department to modify


            6              its current Rule 27 to allow for the sale of


            7              Medigap policies to individuals under 65 with a


            8              disability.


            9                   Exhibit Number 5 is a copy of the Notice of


           10              Public Hearing that went out, that was issued. 


           11              Exhibit 6 is a summary that I wrote for the BLR


           12              describing the proposed changes.  Exhibit 7 is


           13              a copy of the electronic mail distribution


           14              blast, which included the NOPH, which links the


           15              NOPH to a rule for the industry review for


           16              comments.


           17                   Exhibit 8 is a cover letter that we sent to


           18              the Arkansas Democrat Gazette advising them


           19              that we wish to run newspaper notice describing


           20              the date and time for the proposed rule changes


           21              and to describe to the public when and where we


           22              were going to meet to discuss these rule


           23              changes for today, October 23rd at 10:00 a.m. 


           24              I believe the newspaper notice ran for three


           25              days, as it's required to, on 9/18, 9/19, 9/20. 
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            1              That's in Exhibit 9.


            2                   Exhibit 10 is a cover letter to Donna Davis


            3              at Arkansas Legislative Council that enclosed a


            4              copy of the proposed rule.  Exhibits 11 and 12


            5              are filings that we make with the cover letter


            6              and proposed rule to Arkansas Legislative


            7              Council.  The rest of the items, 13 through 16,


            8              are letters that we send as a matter of


            9              courtesy to various officials describing our


           10              proposed rule changes.


           11                   Exhibit 17 is an open area where we receive


           12              public comments.  I've only gotten one public


           13              comment today and it's from Fresenius Medical


           14              Care Group that I would like to admit into the


           15              record.  It makes a comment.  So I will talk


           16              about their letter in a minute.  But I would


           17              make that as part of Exhibit Number 17.  And I


           18              move to admit those items into the


           19              administrative record.


           20                   HEARING OFFICER:  So, without objection,


           21              Department's Exhibits 1 through 17 will be


           22              added to the record, and you can continue.


           23                   (WHEREUPON, Exhibits Number 1 through 17


           24              were marked for identification and are attached


           25              hereto.)
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            1                   MR. RAND:  The Arkansas Insurance


            2              Department Rule 27 that we're reviewing today


            3              is a pre-existing Arkansas Insurance Department


            4              rule.  This is not a new rule.  We are making


            5              amendments to it.  It's, I don't know, 25/30


            6              years old.  We have made amendments to it over


            7              the years reacting to Medicare changes.  I


            8              think the last time we amended Rule 27 is what


            9              we call our Med Supp Rule.  The Medigap Rule


           10              was in 2009.


           11                   Mr. Galbraith, if you'll look at Exhibit 3,


           12              that is the markup of the proposed changes that


           13              we would ask that the Department adopt today. 


           14              As you can tell from Exhibit 3, the markup will


           15              show that we've added Section 9.2, and we add a


           16              Section 25.  So let's start with those.


           17                   The two, basic changes that we're making in


           18              this rule, one is to react to Act 686, which is


           19              Senator Rapert's Act that I have left a copy of


           20              you on Exhibit 4.  In Exhibit 4, in the Act it


           21              says, The Insurance Department shall amend


           22              State Insurance Department Rule 27 to allow for


           23              the sale and purchase of certain policies with


           24              Medigap coverage by Arkansans who are under 65


           25              years of age and have no care due to
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            1              disability.  If you will look back at the


            2              markup in Section 25, that is where we do that.


            3                   In Section 25, we are requiring the issuers


            4              to make available Medigap policies to persons


            5              who are on disability.  That is in Section 25. 


            6              Let me be very clear about that availability. 


            7              If you look at Section 25 of the markup -- it's


            8              way back in here -- the language that we added


            9              to make it available makes it clear, although


           10              the policies --


           11                   HEARING OFFICER:  Booth, can you give me a


           12              second --


           13                   MR. RAND:  Yeah.


           14                   HEARING OFFICER:  -- to find this.  Because


           15              I'm still going through this.  Is there an


           16              appendix back here or have I not gotten to 25


           17              yet?  Oh, hold on.  I got it.  I'm on 26.  25. 


           18              I got it.  Go ahead.


           19                   MR. RAND:  And we're editing the provision


           20              that's new in this rule to comply with Senator


           21              Rapert's Act that requires the Medigap issuers


           22              to offer at least one of ten Med Supp plans to


           23              persons who are on a disability.


           24                   Now, I want to make it very clear that we


           25              are permitting in this.  We are not requiring
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            1              the issuers rate these below 65 with a


            2              disability with the plus-65 group for purposes


            3              of rating.  They are going to be separately


            4              rated related to their disability and age.  So


            5              the reason for that is to avoid rate increases


            6              that we believe would occur if we were to rate


            7              that group into the plus-65 crowd.  They are


            8              disabled and they have already an automatic


            9              claim issued there with their condition.  So we


           10              are making it available, but they will be


           11              separately rated.


           12                   Now, one of the things that the law


           13              requires is that we make sure that the


           14              availability for the below 65 with a disability


           15              is "competitively priced".  I've asked the


           16              issuers to explain how they are going to


           17              accomplish that.  We know that the policies


           18              will probably be more expensive than the ones


           19              for 65 and above that don't have a disability. 


           20              But we're going to encourage the Hearing


           21              Officer to leave the record open so that I can


           22              receive data or comments from the issuers


           23              related to how they're going to competitively


           24              price the below 65 with disability to make sure


           25              that it is competitive within their system.  So
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            1              we are making it available with Section 25.


            2                   The other change is a separate, unconnected


            3              one and it's in -- if you look back on Exhibit


            4              3, which is our markup, under Section 9.2, Mr.


            5              Hearing Officer, you can see that we added


            6              another section, and these are amendments that


            7              we've had to adopt from MACRA -- which is MACRA


            8              is a federal law that stands for Medicare


            9              Access and CHIP Reauthorization Act, a.k.a


           10              MACRA.


           11                   And, essentially, what it is, it's a


           12              federal law that was passed last year or a year


           13              and a half ago that says, essentially, that


           14              after 2020 for any eligible Medicare


           15              beneficiaries, they are not going to be allowed


           16              to purchase Medigap Plans F and C.  And I


           17              adopted, in Section 9.2, the NAIC model


           18              language that the NAIC working group suggested


           19              that the regulators across the country adopt to


           20              comply with MACRA.  So Section 9.2 is the NAIC


           21              language that was submitted to the regulators


           22              that was vetted, that we believe complies with


           23              MACRA.


           24                   If we don't adopt Section 9.2, we're going


           25              to be preempted if we don't.  So we're
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            1              preempted under federal law, under MACRA, to


            2              exclude Medigap Plans C and F for newly


            3              eligible Medicare beneficiaries who become


            4              newly eligible after 2020.


            5                   Now, what's going on behind that, as I


            6              understand it, Medicare believes that some of


            7              the Medigap plans, particularly F and C, which


            8              cover all out-of-pocket cost for Medicare


            9              beneficiaries, are driving up the Medicare


           10              medical cost.  People are more likely to go get


           11              medical services, surgeries, and procedures


           12              done if they know that they're going to have no


           13              out of pocket.  Medicare wants, as I understand


           14              it, the Medicare beneficiaries to have more


           15              skin in the game, to have to pay out-of-pocket


           16              cost, to act as a disincentive to


           17              overutilization and some other issues.


           18                   So this was something that was federally


           19              filed.  It's a federal law that prohibits it. 


           20              So what we're doing in Section 9.2 is,


           21              essentially, mirroring what the requirements


           22              are under federal law.  If we don't put this in


           23              there, we're going to get preempted.


           24                   So these are the proposed changes to the


           25              rule that we have.  Just a couple of comments. 
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            1              I guess, the more controversial issues with


            2              respect to these amendments are reflected a


            3              little bit in this public comment from the


            4              Fresenius Medical Care Group.  The providers


            5              are under the understanding that these new


            6              policies that would be available to under 65


            7              and below who are disabled have to be priced


            8              similarly to the over age 65 plans.  That's not


            9              the way we read that.  We do want to make sure


           10              that the ones that are available to 65 and


           11              below who are on disability are competitively


           12              priced.


           13                   The other issue -- and I believe Ms. Pruitt


           14              from Mitchell Williams, who represents AHIP, or


           15              UHC, may talk about this.  It relates to the


           16              effective date.  The effective date of this


           17              proposed rule, as its written right now, is


           18              1/1/2018.  As I understand it, one of the


           19              comments is going to be that, if you make these


           20              requirements apply 1/1/2018, please bear in


           21              mind that we've already filed for our Medigap


           22              policies this year.  So we're not going to be


           23              able to, in 2018, adjust to these requirements


           24              until 2019.  So all of our Medigap contracts


           25              and policies that you're going to make us cover
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            1              65 and below have already been reviewed and


            2              approved by AID in 2018.  So we need a year to


            3              wait.


            4                   Now, we could make the issuers file new


            5              policies on 1/1/2018.  There's still going to


            6              be a lag time here.  So one thing that I want


            7              to do is to suggest to the Hearing Officer to


            8              keep the record open for the competitive


            9              pricing and, two, keep it open so that we can


           10              look and see how the Department can maybe make


           11              the effective date jive with the companies


           12              filing requirements, because they file for


           13              these before this has gone into effect.


           14                   HEARING OFFICER:  There's no limitation


           15              from the statute in terms of an effective date? 


           16              That was just our own effective date?


           17                   MR. RAND:  Let me read you what the Act


           18              says, and this it says -- the answer is no. 


           19              But the Act says, The State Insurance


           20              Department shall amend State Insurance


           21              Department rule to allow for the sale of


           22              certain policies of Medigap coverage who are


           23              under 65 years of age and have Medicare due to


           24              a disability.


           25                   It doesn't really say when we have to do



                                    GRIGSBY REPORTING SERVICES

                                          (501) 580-5117�








                                                                               14


            1              it.  But I will tell you that Senator Rapert


            2              wants this as effective as he probably can get


            3              it.


            4                   HEARING OFFICER:  Well, sure, but we don't


            5              want to disrupt --


            6                   MR. RAND:  True.


            7                   HEARING OFFICER:  -- or have as little


            8              disruption as possible, and if that's something


            9              that we can do, then I would encourage that.


           10                   MR. RAND:  So we're doing two changes.  One


           11              is to comply with MACRA.  And, again, the MACRA


           12              changes are not going to apply, in reality,


           13              until 2020, so we've got a little bit of time


           14              there for people to get off Cs and Fs.  And


           15              then the other change is related to the


           16              availability of under 65 and the understanding


           17              that they're going to be rated separately.


           18                   HEARING OFFICER:  Has the Department


           19              responded to the public comment that we got in


           20              terms of alleviating their concerns?


           21                   MR. RAND:  Not yet.


           22                   HEARING OFFICER:  No?  Okay.


           23                   MR. RAND:  Not yet.


           24                   HEARING OFFICER:  And are you ready for


           25              public comment?
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            1                   MR. RAND:  Yes.


            2                   HEARING OFFICER:  Do we have anybody that


            3              wants to speak on this rule here today?  If you


            4              would, just identify yourself and have a seat


            5              right there, that'd be great.


            6                   MS. PRUITT:  Good morning.  My name is


            7              Kendra Pruitt.  I'm with the Mitchell Williams


            8              Law Firm.  I'm here on behalf of America's


            9              Health Insurance Plans, and I have a letter in


           10              support of the proposed change, offering just


           11              one change to the proposal, as Mr. Rand


           12              mentioned, and that's the effective date.


           13                   The letter from America's Health Insurance


           14              Plans is absolutely in support of it, but they


           15              would propose that the rule change the


           16              effective date from January 1, 2018, because


           17              the members would be hard pressed to implement


           18              those substantial changes by that deadline.  I


           19              believe that they have indicated in the letter


           20              that I, again, want to enter into the record,


           21              an effective date of January 1, 2019.  However,


           22              we understand that there is an interest to have


           23              those changes in place next year.  So we would


           24              propose that, at the earliest, July 1, 2018. 


           25              And so here's this letter.
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            1                   MR. RAND:  July 2018 might work.  My


            2              problem with this is with MACRA.


            3                   HEARING OFFICER:  How would we label that


            4              exhibit, Booth?  17A and B?  Because that's


            5              public comment, so we're going to add that to


            6              17.


            7                   MR. RAND:  This will be 17B.


            8                   HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else?


            9                   MS. PRUITT:  That is it.


           10                   HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.


           11                   MS. PRUITT:  Thank you.


           12                   HEARING OFFICER:  Is there anyone else that


           13              wants to speak on this rule?


           14                     (No audible response given)


           15                   HEARING OFFICER:  If not, then we're going


           16              to keep the record open, as you suggested, on


           17              the competitive pricing issue, but also on our


           18              determination of the effective date.


           19                   MR. RAND:  Yes, sir.


           20                   HEARING OFFICER:  What is your suggestion


           21              on how long we should keep that open?


           22                   MR. RAND:  Twenty days.  I believe Joint


           23              Interim Commerce -- Insurance and Commerce


           24              meets on the 7th of November.  That's just not


           25              enough time.  I mean, the law only requires us



                                    GRIGSBY REPORTING SERVICES

                                          (501) 580-5117�








                                                                               17


            1              to get it reviewed before January 1st, so I


            2              think we've got some time.  So 20 days is fine


            3              with me.


            4                   HEARING OFFICER:  Then we'll keep the


            5              record open for 20 days for those two specific


            6              issues.


            7                   Is there anything else for the good of the


            8              order?


            9                   MR. RAND:  No, sir.  That is it.


           10                   HEARING OFFICER:  Do you have a


           11              question/comment?


           12                   MS. CLEMENTS:  I'm Levern Clements and I


           13              work in SHIIP.  I have a question.  If you


           14              could repeat why you're no longer making


           15              Policies C and F available.


           16                   MR. RAND:  That's not us.  That's the


           17              federal government.


           18                   MS. CLEMENTS:  What is it?


           19                   MR. RAND:  The federal government, CMS, has


           20              decided that people with C and F which,


           21              basically, as I understand it, cover 100


           22              percent of your out of pocket cost.  They are a


           23              problem to CMS because people tend to utilize


           24              the Medicare services because they know that if


           25              they've got a C and F, they're more likely to



                                    GRIGSBY REPORTING SERVICES

                                          (501) 580-5117�








                                                                               18


            1              use as much medical services as they can. 


            2              That's my understanding of what's going on


            3              behind MACRA.  And, again, they're going to


            4              make these changes implement on 2020, so you've


            5              got a little bit of a window.


            6                   So, the other products that are not C and


            7              F, which have more significant cost sharing


            8              responsibilities, I don't know how those are


            9              going to be adjusted, if they are required to


           10              be.  But that's not something that the state is


           11              removing.


           12                   MS. CLEMENTS:  Federal.  Okay.


           13                   MR. RAND:  That is federal.  If we don't


           14              put this in there, it will be removed whether


           15              we do or don't.


           16                   HEARING OFFICER:  Well, if there's not


           17              anything else, then the record will stay open


           18              for 20 days, and the hearing is adjourned at


           19              10:20.


           20                   (WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concluded


           21              in this matter at 10:20 a.m.)
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